EAST LYME BOARD OF FINANCE
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
BUDGET REVIEWS - FY 2017-2018
Wednesday, MARCH 29th, 2017

Members In Attendance: Camille Alberti, Chairperson
Lisa Picarazzi, Vice-Chairperson FILED
Jason Pazzaglia , )
Peter DeRosa A’P (3 2017 arlo:doam:
William Weber d{ éﬂ [ [ 3 f/czz é 70 aj_L
Also In Attendance: Mark Nickerson, First Selectman EAST LYME TOWN CLERK

Anna Johnson, Finance Director

Karen Galbo, Acting Town Clerk

Lisa Timothy, Library Director

Dave Putnam, Parks & Recreation Director
Joe Bragaw, Director, Public Works

Bill Scheer, Assistant Director, Public Works
Victor Benni, Town Engineer

Absent: Beth Hogan

A. Call Special Meeting to Order
Chairperson Alberti called this Special Meeting of the East Lyme Board of Finance to order at 6:32 PM.

B. Pledge of Allegiance
The Pledge was observed.

C. Delegations
Ms. Alberti called for Delegations.
There were none.

D. New Business

a. Budget Reviews — FY 2017 — 2018

Mr. Nickerson said that he would like to note, before they start, that he had received word from Luane Lange
apologizing for missing the meeting the previous evening where Historic Properties was on the agenda. He
said that he had conveyed to her that they will work with various people to try to put together fundraisers that
will help them with some additional funding.

Ms. Alberti noted that she had also received a call from Ms. Lange apologizing for missing the meeting.

¢+ Town Clerk (107) — Mark Nickerson, Karen Galbo, Asst. Town Clerk
Mr. Nickerson noted that the Asst. Town Clerk was present this evening. He said that they should note that
line #292 - Contracted Land record management was reduced by $5000 by the Board of Selectmen.

Mr. Pazzaglia asked if there was a way to reduce it further (by $2000) to $15,000.
Ms. Galbo explained that it is based on activity and that they also get a rebate from it due to having their
information available on-line.

Ms. Alberti asked about Marriage and Dog Licenses.
Ms. Galbo said that is also based on activity - how many marriages take place and how many dogs are
licensed.




¢ Library (Culture & Rec) (420) — Lisa Timothy, Library Director

Ms. Timothy passed out statistics to the Board (Attached) and explained the items that they cover and the
many services that they provide. She said that their new web page has won an award; and they have all new
computers which they have installed all by themselves with a lot of their employees volunteer time effort. It
has been a difficult budget year as a lot hinges on the Federal and State cuts which also hinge on one
another and what they receive. They have 11 full time and 20 part time staff and a network of 41 computers
open to the public.

Mr. Weber asked her to review the revenues.

Ms. Timothy said that the money that is being carried forward is primarily due to the insurance increase that
was proposed, not being realized at the proposed rate. The gifts and memorials include proceeds from the
book sale. The profits from the color copier pay for the lease of it and also provide revenue. In the past they
were sending people to Staples for copies; Mr. Nickerson suggested that they lease a color copier and
charge for the copies and obtain revenue from it — this has worked out very well.

Mr. Weber asked about the homebound deliveries that they make and if a volunteer does them.
Ms. Timothy said yes, they are done by volunteers.

Mr. Weber asked about the revenues decreasing each year.
Ms. Timothy said that it was due to better tracking on the insurance percent increase — as that is tightened
up they do not have as much excess to carry forward. They also received $4000 less from the State.

Mr. Weber asked if people still use periodicals.
Ms. Timothy said yes; she added that they also offer on-line magazines and that about 3000 issues are
downloaded by patrons each year.

Mr. DeRosa asked about the inter-library book exchange and if it is a result of the State cuts.
Ms. Timothy said yes.

Ms. Picarazzi noted that the Selectmen had cut the budget by $28,000 supporting a 2.5% increase.
Mr. Nickerson said that the request was for 5% and that they had reduced it to keep it in a 2% range.
Ms. Picarazzi asked about the Waterford library budget and if any comparison had been done.

Mr. Nickerson said that it is basically the same — a $1.1M budget.

Ms. Picarazzi asked about the hours that they are open.
Ms. Timothy noted the hours and said that if they were to cut the Sunday hours that it would come to a
$16,000 reduction which would help getting to the $28,000 reduction.

Ms. Picarazzi asked if they closed for an hour a day or opened an hour later if she might know what they
would come to.

Ms. Timothy said that one hour is about $3000 however; she does not like to keep moving hours around as it
confuses people and then they do not know when the library is open.

Ms. Picarazzi asked Ms. Timothy where she thought she could be cut as she knows what we are all up
against.

Ms. Timothy said that it would be easier if she was given a figure and then she would work it out — it comes
down to hours and materials. She said that the State is no longer paying for the computer services so they
will have to pay for that on their own.

Ms. Alberti asked if the budget were to pass at the $1.148M — would they stay open on Sundays.
Ms. Timothy said that it is likely that they would have to close on Sundays — to meet the $28,000 reduction.

Ms. Timothy said that 90-91% of the funding for the library comes from the Town — the rest comes from fund
drives, etc.

Mr. Nickerson explained that the library has its own Board of Trustees.
Ms. Timothy said that many are here this evening in the audience.

Board of Finance FY17-18 Special Meeting Minutes — March 29, 2017 2




+ Registrars (110) — presented by Mr. Nickerson
Mr. Nickerson said that they have two new Registrars as both of the former ones have retired. He noted that
the budget has been reduced a bit.

¢+ Parks & Recreation & Youth Services (421/422) — Dave Putnam, Director
Mr. Nickerson noted that there are a few increases here and that Mr. Putnam is here to explain his budget.

Mr. Putnam passed out the 2016 year in review that they publish for the Town and a copy of the beach pass
revenues since 2010. He said that they have a great maintenance staff and a Park Foreman that take care of
everything. He said they manage the new boardwalk in addition to the other Parks, do the Town Grounds
maintenance, East Lyme Sports Leagues facilities/fields maintenance and upkeep and programs for Parks &
Rec and Youth Services. He noted that his part time seasonal line item increased as the pay had increased
from $9.55/hr to $10.10/hr due to a January 1, 2017 minimum wage increase. He said that he had provided
them with the information on the beach pass revenue which has doubled from 2010 — 2016. He would like to
hire Security (Police) to help cover the beach due to the number of people who have come to the beaches.
Security and lifeguards are important to the smooth operation of the beaches. He has requested $10,000 for
this item.

Ms. Picarazzi asked what the $10,000 would get.
Mr. Putnam said that there are 15 weekends through Labor Day and that he would like coverage for 11
weekends plus for the Celebrate East Lyme event.

Ms. Alberti said that she thought that coverage for the Celebrate East Lyme event was in the Police budget.
Mr. Putnam said that they do cover the Main Street events but not the beaches — he is looking for coverage
for the beaches.

Ms. Picarazzi said that she thinks that if they really want to do this that $10,000 seems light as the police get
time and a half. She said that they should look at this to make it as cost effective as possible before they
start it.

Mr. Putnam said that other than those few items that the budget ws pretty flat.

Ms. Picarazzi said that she had been reading about a Dog Park initiative.

Mr. Putnam said that has nothing to do with them; it came out of the Selectman’s Office and while it probably
would get to him eventually — it has not been planned for here. He said that whatever was necessary would
probably be minimal — empty the trash, etc.

Mr. Nickerson said that people are doing fundraising for it.

Ms. Picarazzi said: forgive her but this sounds a lot like the Samuel Smith House regarding fundraising and
not costing the Town and they can see where that got them. She asked if it would have to go in the capital
plan.

Mr. Nickerson said that there is $15,000 in there now.

Ms. Picarazzi asked about the Band Shell.
Mr. Putnam said that it has been purchased and will be installed this spring.

Ms. Picarazzi asked if they would be re-visiting the pricing for the beach passes.
Mr. Putnam said that they revisit them each year and have kept them the same from the previous year. It is
the Commission that sets the fees.

Mr. Weber asked if the equipment and park and field figures will come in as stated.
Mr. Putnam said yes.

Mr. Weber said that it seems that the fees for the beach passes may be due to go up.
Mr. Putnam said that it is a tough balance between the taxpayer and resident, etc.

Mr. Pazzaglia asked about the vendors and private concemns.
Mr. Putnam said that they vendor out McCook, Cini Park and Hole in the Wall. They have a vendor permit
package that is used.

Board of Finance FY17-18 Special Meeting Minutes — March 29, 2017 3




Mr. Weber asked if they are expecting any rental revenue from the Band Shell this year.
Mr. Putnam said that he did not think they would see anything this year. They will be renting it the same as
they rent out the tent. They rent the tent at $65 for a half day.

Ms. Picarazzi said that $65 for a half day rental on the ocean is something from the 1940’s and that it needs
to be looked at as it is way too low.
Mr. Putnam said that the Parks & Rec Commission sets the fees and that he would tell them.

Public Works Overview — presented by Joe Bragaw, Director, Public Works:

Mr. Bragaw said that he has a good group of people working for him in the departments that he covers —
Highway/Sanitation, Building Maintenance, Engineering and IT. They have been doing more with less. Some
of them are also in the audience tonight.

He said that the departments that he oversees were cut approximately $255,000 last year which was 85% of
the total cut from the Town Government side.

He cited the following as an overview of some of their projects/accomplishments for the four departments
that he oversees:

Highway/Sanitation — 114 miles of Town roads, 14 miles of sidewalk — sweeping, trimming, patching, fixing,
plowing, fixing drainage structures, road signs, and picking up downed trees. Maintenance work is done from
March — December. Garbage and recycling is picked up throughout the year each week, along with the
operation of the transfer station M-F and Saturdays a half day. The three mechanics service approx. 120
cars, trucks, trailers and other equipment on a daily bases. Snow plowing encompasses 15 routes while also
maintaining the vehicles during these events. The guys do a great job with this as it is not an easy task.
Pavement Management — Successfully reconstructed Bush Hill, Latimer and Cavasin Dr. roads at a cost of
approx. $1M — came in as scheduled and under budget. Also cape sealed many roads throughout Town.
Also paved Society Road, and sealed cracks in the roads in the beach areas, all in line with the pavement
management plan.

Projects — The salt shed and fueling station was completed and came in approx. $50,000 under budget due
to our crews doing as much of the work as possible and the purchase of a slightly used above ground tank.
The old salt shed area was fixed up with the removal of two dilapidated buildings and grassing the area —
done with no budget but covered by the new salt shed project savings. Streetlights were purchased in the
Town from Eversource and retrofitted with LED fixtures. After this project cost is paid back, the Town should
see savings of approx. 50-70% on the existing streetlight costs. They are looking to take the old Mobil
Station building down on Main Street in the coming months and remediate the area with State Grant funding
that was received. The ELCC parking lot will be rearranged to improve the parking in this important Town
facility. The Atlantic Avenue drainage project work should be done shortly; scrap metal was put out to bid last
summer and they are now receiving more for it and through the SCRRRA trash authority they were able to
negotiate a new trash disposal contract with the trash to energy company Coventa which should insure tip
fee stabilization and other free services such as the Household hazardous waste collections for the Town for
the next 10 years.

Engineering, Bldg. Maintenance, IT — Engineering keeps current with all required CT DEEP environmental
permitting; the Town was certified as a Class 8 community in the FEMA CRS program which gives the East
Lyme residents 10% off of their flood insurance — we are one of about 8 communities who have been
certified in this program. Building Maintenance paid for pulling the underground tanks at the Community
Center and at both the Flanders and Niantic Fire Dept facilities; solicited bids for replacing generators at both
Niantic and Flanders Fire Depts. and installed new video surveillance systems at the new fueling station at
Capitol Drive, town Hall and ELCC through LoCIP funds. IT supports the Town computer system and we
have already signed documents to move forward with a new VOIP phone system with Frontier for $9000
versus the $40,000 we had originally estimated to replace the aging system currently in use.

Of the four Public Works budgets that they are discussing this evening — he said that they are up a combined
$44,605 on a proposed budget of $4,915,284 or a 0.91% total increase.

Board of Finance FY17-18 Special Meeting Minutes — March 29, 2017 4




+ Town Engineer (105) — presented by Joe Bragaw, Director, Public Works

Mr. Bragaw said that this department is comprised of Victor Benni, Town Engineer and Peter Gilberto, Civil
Engineer. Marilyn Wright is the Admin Asst. — 25% of her salary is now allocated to the Water dept. as she
spends that time on processing their work. He explained that Victor the Town Engineer does pavement
management along with his other duties. In this budget he said that he is moving the Civil Engineer’'s 40%
salary from Water to the Town side to be at 100%. The Inspector position was eliminated and the Civil
Engineer will spend his time covering some of those functions. Stormwater Management at $4000 partially
covers costs to comply with the mandated water testing.

¢ Building Maintenance (113) - presented by Joe Bragaw, Director, Public Works

Mr. Bragaw said that this is pretty straight forward and that the budget is flat. Line #295 — Fire Protection —
Town is for the hydrants and it keeps increasing by 10% each year. He said that they were very fortunate
with the price that they pay for oil by keeping it in Town with Guy’s.

Ms. Alberti asked about the electricity going up. She noted that when they heard from the Board of Ed the
other evening that they said that it is going down.

Mr. Bragaw said that it was trending that way in December when they worked on the budgets; however he
would re-calculate it to see where they are now. He said that he does not want it to be underfunded and have
to come back for more money.

+ Public Works (317) — presented by Joe Bragaw, Director, Public Works

Mr. Bragaw explained that the Highway Supervisor, chuck Holyfield retired on March 17" after 22 years of
dedicated service to the Town. He is not filling the position right away as they figure out what skill sets are
needed in this position going forward. He explained that the salary line covers 75% of his salary and 100% of
Bill Scheer’s position as Deputy Public Works Director, as well as something for the one position.

He said that he has also requested that the Highway Overtime be restored to the FY15/16 level - $38,000.
He explained that just to keep the transfer station open on Saturday mornings costs the Town $22,000 so the
$21,000 that was budgeted for this year does not even cover that. They still need money to cover OT for
Celebrate East Lyme, the Light Parade and double garbage collections after Thanksgiving along with any
other requests that are made as a result of a storm emergency etc after their regular hours.

The Storm Overtime is for winter operations and tropical storms needing their assistance. This has been an
average winter and it seems that they will be ending the season at around $63,000.

He noted that they raised the fees on commercial haulers a year ago to come more in line with other area
Towns which has provided them with an additional $20-25,000 in revenue per year.

He said that he has held fleet fuel the same even though his department is charged for fuel used for a
number of other departments (Bldg., COA, FM, Police and Parks & Rec) and the amount varies.

Lastly he said that he is requesting an additional amount of $7,333 for streetlights because they keep getting
more streetlights that are being requested by the Planning Dept. for developments such as the Orchards —
this increases the streetlight expense.

Ms. Picarazzi said that she wanted some clarity on the overtime accounts.

Mr. Bragaw said that the Highway Overtime budget is $21,000 — if the Transfer Station is open on Saturdays
throughout the year — that costs $22,000. There is aiso other work that they do that is overtime — cover the
Celebrate East Lyme and Light Parade events; pick up garbage and recycling after Thanksgiving and be on
call for storm events that require their assistance. So, he requested that it be put back to the $38,000 which
is not a lot to have especially when $22,000 is just for Saturdays. The Storm Overtime account to date is at
$65,000 in an average storm year — to request $68,000 is very reasonabie.

Mr. Weber noted the $921,887 in revenue that they get and asked the items that they get this from.
Ms. Johnson said that it is on the revenue listing that they have, it includes LoCIP funding and revenue from
the transfer station.

Mr. Weber asked about the fees.
Mr. Bragaw said that he is hoping to re-adjust some of the fees as some are very low.

Board of Finance FY17-18 Special Meeting Minutes — March 29, 2017 5




Ms. Alberti and Ms. Picarazzi said that they would like to see who works for which area and how people may
have their time divided.
Mr. Bragaw said that he would provide them with a flow chart.

+ Information Technology (109) — presented by Joe Bragaw, Director, Public Works

Mr. Bragaw said that the only increase in this budget is for salary and longevity payments. The Police Dept.
chips in $5000 for the Office maintenance contract which is with Star Computers. He said that they have
done a great job in keeping the system working well. They are also a local contractor and taxpayer.

Mr. Weber said that the copier maintenance rate has been flat.
Mr. Bragaw said that it is flat rate five year lease program.

Mr. Bragaw provided them with a listing of all of the Town vehicles as had been requested at an earlier
meeting.

¢ Board of Finance (126) — Anna Johnson, Finance Director
Ms. Johnson said that they had bid out the Audit Services and they agreed to keep it at the older rate so they
were able to save.

+ Services to Community (115) — presented by Mark Nickerson

Mr. Nickerson explained that about 75% of these services sent requests for more money as the State
continues to make reductions to what they give out. As a community they have donated to those on this list
and as such they have kept the donation the same as in the previous year.

E. Public Discussion
Ms. Alberti called for any comments from the Public.
There were none.

F. Board Comments
Ms. Alberti called for Board Comments.
There were none.

G. Adjournment

**MOTION (1)

Ms. Picarazzi moved to adjourn this Special Meeting of the East Lyme Board of Finance at 9:15 PM.
Mr. DeRosa seconded the motion.

Vote: 5-0-0. Motion passed.

Respectfully submitted,

Karen Zmitruk,
Recording Secretary

Board of Finance FY17-18 Special Meseting Minutes — March 29, 2017 6




In 2016...

117,942 Visitors

165,793 Items Borrowed

10,742 Public Computer Users

6,096 Questions Answered

4,311 Program Attendees

360 Programs

448 Items Delivered to
Homebound Patrons

‘,AE{O.QC”)WK—?L# ot  Blzalia




1, 8-D printers

2. Adaptive technology
3. Antique appraisals

4, Art exhibits

5. Athletic tournaments
6. Auctlons

7. Book discussion
groups

8. Book sales

9. Book scanners
10. Cameras

11. Chess clubs i
12. Cltizenship prepara-
tion

13. Community Infor-
mation

14. Compact disc play-
ers

15. Computer access
16. Computer insfruction
17. Concerts

18. Cultural events

19, Dally newspapers

20, Downloadable mu-
sic

21. DVD players

22. E-books

23. E-book readers

24. E-magazines

25. Early literacy classes

26. Electric transport
chair

27. ESL Classes

28. Engravers

29. Exhiblt space

30. Eyeglass recycling

31. Fax machines

S Mcchniew oL

32. Flag disposal

33. Food donation drop-
off

34. Framed art
35. Game nights
36. Garden clubs
37 GED classes

38. Genedlogical Infor-
mation

39. Government infor-
mation

40, Health newsletters

41. Home schooling
Information

42. Homebound book
delivery

43. Homework centers

44, Investment infor-
mation

45. Job centers

46. Job skills fralning

47. Kill-a-Watt meters

48, Knitting clubs

49. Language instruction
50. Large print books

51. Lectern

52. Legal forms

53. Lelsure programs

54, Magnlfiers

55, Makerspaces

56. Maps

57. Medicare counseling
58. Meeting Rooms

59. Museum passes

60. Multicultural pro-
grams

61. New baby packets

62. Notary services

43. Paper shredder

64, Parenting workshops
65. Passport processing
66. Phone books

67. photo copy ma-
chines

68, Photography work-
shops

69. Piano
70. Play groups

71. Postry readings and
contests

72. Postage stamps

73. Pre~school orienta-
tion

74. Printers
75. Projectors
76. Puppetry
77. Robots
78, Scanners

79. Small business work-
shops

80. Smart boards
81. Study rooms

82. Summer reading
programs

83. Tal chi
84, Tax forms

85. Tax preparation
advice

86. Teen life skills classes
87. Teleconferencing
88. Telescopes

89. Test proctoring ser-
vices

90. Translation services

91. Tutoring

92. Typewriters

93. Video equipment
94, Voter registration
95. Wheelchairs

96. Writing groups

97. Thermal leak detec-
tor

98. VHS to DVD convert-
er

99. Term Paper Clinics

100. Therapy Dogs

001

1qrY

isoLre INONdIUUS) O pury
nnox sbumy Hm

3 zq/z >




SNUIASY

ssed yoeag m

sayorag Aeg dIIUBIN

[EM U] 9]OH

MOOD

00000¢

0000532

/%CLQJMLM (S 3?/ Z9 / ()



"SIaqUIs W AJIUNWwod 03 uonejuasaid
3uIuaA? UE pUE SjUSPNIS [00YIs YB1y [[e 03 uoneIussald usLIsy
SHY) 3yl papuny :juels [DUN0) uoldy [euoiday 1Seayinos

) 00'956'0¢$ - 1ueIH
(8S@D) uonesnpg jo yusuneda( s1e31§ INDNIBUUOY IITAISS ynox

:PaAIAL SUIpUN JUBIY SIIIAIAS YINOX

'L102
Jo 3uLidg ay3 Ul palONIISU0D 9q 03 NP ST JINONLS Y, "AIEI0Y JnuerN

Pue ‘SUOIT JNUEIN ST JI[qng SwAT Iseq oYL, woyy suoneuop (nydjay
Apwanxa yum 9107 Ul paseyoand sem [[ays pueg qIed U104 YOOI

"uonipuod 3uiderd rewndo ur spray Suideld urejurewr d[ay 01 1030e1]
eloqny] syusuriredap ay) 10§ paseyoand sem JuswWYORIIE Jpass ISV

9102 urjuswdmb3y/s1a3f0.1g yuswasordwy ende)

puny anuaaay [p1o3ds ay3 ul pasn a.up saipisqns 1aAvdxpl ou
‘burwwp.boud aof saaf 1asn Aq papuny A]215]dw0o s1 punf anuaaa. p1oads
0000097 €$ = onusaaay pajeulnsy
008°2Z£$ = sasuadxq parewinsyg - puny anuaAay [epadg

619v¥6$ - 193png Suneradg [ersuay)

126png paao.addy .avaf [posi] LT0Z-9T07

PIEMIS WEIIM ] JoUTejurejy
S9A[Y UOSE[ :[I] JoulejUIRy

ey oI A Jowejure y

[(ed p3 :sie1ads jan ] /uewaioy

“Je1S ooueuaIuley

INQJIM SUSIY :AI€)0.103S IANeNSIUIWPY
LISIpUeI) UIqoy :JUEISISSY dANE.NSIUIuIpy

[IPMOQI I :10)eUIPI00) JUIAY [e1dods
/S901A13S YInox 1030201 wesSoaq

19)ISS0Y [0JB) :I0)eUIp.100) weidoig

weung ‘W plae(q :10392J1q

UOISSTWWIOD UOBAIISY PUE 3IBd 917 03 9Qa9g WIOL, SUI0I[aM IM .

S119qoY uay upjie yed
unIeq ied J9S9) UBIN
}d01g uuy Arusy afprey)n
AIB181098 -[[9Uu0) 0 A1meT] Ay apype(

durmo( arn|
Iaissn] [ned
ueULIlEY) — PlOJIUB 3X{I]N

neapeN 1380y
UBULItey) 931A — “I[ ‘SI9[IM WRI[IM
UeuLIrey) - Iauuejd 110qoy

ISIQUId ] UOISSTWUIO)
S9JIAISS YINOX

ISIOQUIdN UOISSIWIUIOY)
uonea.I9y pue syIed

%/Z‘T / 1=~



